
SPOTLAND AND FALINGE AREA FORUM

Thursday 27 June 2019 at 7.00pm
Falinge Community Hub, Falinge Park, 

Rochdale  OL12 6JE

AGENDA

1.  Welcome, Introductions, Apologies and Code of Conduct 

2.  Greater Manchester Police including PACT meeting 

3.  Minutes of last meeting/Matters arising/Updates 

4.  Members/Ward Funds 

5.  Councillor Updates/News 

6.  Open Forum - An opportunity for local residents to comment on 
issues in the ward 

7.  Dates and times of the next meetings 

Thursday 19 September 2019 at 7.00pm
Thursday 12 December 2019 at 7.00pm (AGM)
Thursday 5 March 2020 at 7.00pm

Public Document Pack



Rochdale Township Area Forums
Code of Conduct

It is established by and for the Rochdale Township Area Forums that the following 
code of conduct will govern the behaviour of their members.  The code of conduct will 
be enforced by the Chair of this meeting.

Conduct at meetings
Members will at all times observe accepted practice while taking part in discussions 
to:

• Be courteous to each other and support and assist other members in finding
the best possible solution to problems being discussed

• Allow each other the opportunity to speak and comment
• Attempt as far as possible to stick to the agenda and assist each other to

reach effective conclusions
• Operate within the constitution where applicable
• Aggression, violence, threats, harassment, intimidation and other disruptive

behaviour in the forum will not be tolerated
• The term ‘members’ applies to all those present at the meeting

Confidentiality
• Members will refrain from mentioning specific individual cases which may

cause embarrassment or identification of an individual
• Any information or item shared that is of a confidential nature will not be

disclosed to anyone else apart from members of the Forum in order to allow
the business of the meeting to proceed.

Dignity at meetings
• All those who attend Forum meetings have the right to be treated with dignity

and respect regardless of their race, colour, ethnic or national origin,
nationality, gender, marital status, age, sexuality, religion or any other matter
which causes people to be discriminated against

• The meeting will do all that is in its power to oppose all forms of harassment
and bullying

Individual Members
• Should disclose any personal interest that they consider may affect or

influence their approach to the matter being discussed
• Must show respect in all their dealings by observing reasonable standards

and courtesy, and by not seeking to take unfair advantage by virtue of their
position

Political Affiliation
• Even though individual members may be affiliated to/or be members of a

political party, they may not represent a political party in their role as
individual members of this Forum

• Elected Members attending meetings outside the ward they represent may be
allowed to speak, at the discretion of the Chair.

Breach of Code of Conduct
• If anyone attending the Forum meeting does not abide by the code of

conduct, the Chair will have the discretion to decide on an appropriate course
of action.  The Chair may either issue a warning, ask the person to withdraw
from a particular agenda item or exclude that person from the meeting.

• Where a person is asked to leave a meeting, the Chair will have the discretion
to decide whether or not that person is welcome to attend future meetings.

• The Chair at his/her discretion, may close the meeting if he/she deems it
necessary Page 2

Agenda Item 1



SPOTLAND AND FALINGE AREA FORUM

MINUTES OF MEETING
Thursday 7 March 2019

PRESENT:  Councillors Cecile Biant, Cocks and Rana, P. Massey (Chair) and 
approximately twenty members of the public.

OFFICERS: PC Jones, PCSO Robinson, M. Reynolds (Crime & ASB Officer), 
L. Wardle (Public Realm Inspector) and G. Finch (Township & Engagement Officer)

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: 10 Residents

WELCOME, INTRODUCTIONS, APOLOGIES AND CODE OF CONDUCT
131
The Chair introduced himself and officers present and welcomed all to the meeting. 
He asked all present that the code of conduct be adhered to throughout the meeting.

The Forum was informed that ten residents had submitted their apologies for the 
meeting.

GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE INCLUDING PACT MEETING
132
PC Jones and PCSO Robinson attended the meeting for this item.

The Forum was informed of the following issues:

1. Operation Bohemia – This was an initiative aimed at responding to the 
significant increase in anti-social behaviour around the Spotland Road / 
Falinge areas. The operation concluded in January following a large reduction 
in incidents.

2. Two habitual juvenile offenders in the Ward have recently received detention 
orders. As a result vehicle crime in the Greave area has reduced and anti-
social behaviour around the shops at Greave has also seen a reduction.

3. Another successful Operation Dragster was recently undertaken. A number of 
vehicles including two bikes and a van were seized. It is hoped that the new 
gate that is being installed at Knacks Lane will help to restrict access to 
Rooley Moor.

4. A number of burglaries are being investigated where evidence permits. Forum 
members were reminded to ensure that windows and doors are locked, timers 
are used on lights and alarms are used wherever possible.

5. Meanwood School patrols are continuing to ensure child safety around the 
school. Yellow lines near to the school have now been re-instated.

6. Greater Manchester Police are introducing a new online reporting facility. 
GMP’s website now allows for the following to be made online:

- Crime Reporting
- Neighbourhood and Pub Watch Scheme Registration

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



- Triage and advice services for fraud and missing persons.
- Reporting counter terrorism concerns.

It is hoped that the above facility will help alleviate the problems being 
experienced by residents when contacting the 101 number.

7. Regular patrols at Denehurst Park will continue. 

8. Drug dealing is an on-going problem in certain parts of the Ward and 
Neighbourhood Officers will continue to gather information about this.

Residents raised the following concerns:

- Speeding in the Ward with specific reference being made to the recent 
accident on Rooley Moor Road. 

GMP acknowledged speeding was a problem and explained that the 
Neighbourhood Policing Team had made a request to purchase a speed 
gun which could be used as a future deterrent within the Ward.

- Off-road bikes being used on Churchill Street near to the school.

- Anti-social behaviour being a serious problem near to the tram-stop in the 
Town Centre. A taxi driver provided an example of where an object had 
been thrown at his vehicle which he subsequently reported.

It was acknowledged that ASB incidents have been a frequent problem, 
particularly on the Tram Network. It was also explained that more 
resources have been assigned to Town Centre teams to combat ASB and 
criminal activity. 

The taxi drivers present asked if it would be possible to arrange a meeting 
between taxi drivers, GMP and Council representatives.

It was agreed that the PACT priorities until the next Forum meeting will be speeding, 
anti-social behaviour and off-road biking.

MINUTES OF LAST MEETING/MATTERS ARISING/UPDATES
133
The minutes of the Area Forum meeting held on Thursday 13 December 2018 were 
approved as a correct record.

The Township and Engagement Officer sought confirmation, following a request from 
the Highways Service, that the Forum wanted to undertake another speed survey on 
Rooley Moor Road. It was explained that two surveys; one in 2008 and another in 
2017 had been carried out providing similar results. 

Following discussion where residents put forward arguments in support and against 
the undertaking of another survey it was agreed not to progress the request for 
another survey. It was agreed however that the £1500 that had been allocated to the 
survey should be re-directed to help support the installation on a vehicle activated 
speed sign on Rooley Moor Road.

Page 4



The Township and Engagement Officer explained that he had no further updates. 
The Update / Action Sheet had been circulated prior to the meeting. However the 
Public Realm Inspector commented that the hedges on Ings Lane would be cut back 
when the nesting season finishes.

MEMBERS/WARD FUNDS
134
It was explained that all Members / Ward Funds had been allocated for 2018/19 and 
that the allocations for 2019/20 would be known in June.

COUNCILLOR UPDATES/NEWS
135
The following updates were provided:

Councillor Rana explained that he had been involved in a number of projects aimed 
at tidying up the Ward. He stressed that should anyone know of an area in the Ward 
that is need of attention please contact him.

It was also explained that Councillor Cocks and himself are looking at a project for 
Spotland Bridge whilst all three Ward Councillors had contributed to the installation of 
ten bins to be located at various sites in the Ward.  Councillor Rana also highlighted 
that he had recently organised a fundraising event which raised £510 for Rochdale 
Veterans.

Councillor Cocks informed the meeting that she was a member of Rochdale Stadium 
Safety Committee. She commented that the up and coming fixture against 
Sunderland (6th April) would potentially cause congestion in the area around the 
stadium with disruption possible. Plans and arrangements for parking will be in place 
for away supporters. It was also commented that Denehurst Park was having an 
open day on the same date which may add to congestion in the area.

Councillor Cocks also explained that she was on the Adoption Panel and encouraged 
residents to consider becoming foster parents and was Chair of the Age Friendly 
Rochdale Strategy Group.

 The Forum was also informed that Council Tax is set to rise by 3.99%. 

Councillor Biant’s update can be accessed via the link below.
http://democracy.rochdale.gov.uk/documents/s66177/Councillor%20Biant%20-
%20Update.pdf

The Chair reminded the Forum that this would be Councillor Biant’s last meeting in 
her role as a Councillor. He thanked Councillor Biant for her hard work in the Ward 
over many years. Members of the Forum supported and acknowledged this view.

OPEN FORUM - AN OPPORTUNITY FOR LOCAL RESIDENTS TO COMMENT ON 
ISSUES IN THE WARD
136
The Forum was informed of the following events:

1. Ings Lane Play Area will be opened on the 22 March 2019. It is hoped to 
involve local school children in the event.

2. Denehurst Park will be having an opening event on the 6 April 2019

Page 5

http://democracy.rochdale.gov.uk/documents/s66177/Councillor%20Biant%20-%20Update.pdf
http://democracy.rochdale.gov.uk/documents/s66177/Councillor%20Biant%20-%20Update.pdf


3. A Festival of Light will be held in Falinge Park on the 29 November 2019

4. Vintage Worx are planning to create a Victorian Garden in Falinge Park and 
are looking for volunteers to assist with this. Anyone interested should contact 
Vintage Worx direct -  01706 632297

5. Vintage Worx will be holding an Easter Sunday Event with all proceeds going 
to the Mayor’s Charity.

More details will be circulated via the Spotland and Falinge Ward database about the 
above events when available.

Residents raised the following issues:

1. Cutgate Road Traffic Calming

A resident raised concerns about the distance between speed humps on this 
particular scheme. It was argued that the distance enabled cars to speed 
excessively resulting in the traffic calming measures to be ineffective at certain 
points.

Highways would be informed of this comment.

2. TBA Progress

A resident asked if a progress report could be provided on the TBA site.

The appropriate service would be asked for a comment.

3. Rooley Moor Road Route Study

Concerns were raised about the potential outcomes of the above study 
particularly the view that the introduction of traffic restrictions on Rooley Moor 
Road would encourage speeding. It was also expressed that residents and 
businesses in the area should have been consulted as part of the study process.

The Township and Engagement Officer explained that he had spoken to Highway 
Services this week who had informed him that the study had now been 
completed. It was hoped that the proposals would be advertised in June. Once 
advertised residents and businesses in the area would have 21 days to support 
or object to the proposals. If any objections are received the proposed scheme 
would be referred to Action and Resources Committee for a decision.

4. Fields in Trust

A resident asked if it would be possible to register Denehurst Park and Falinge 
Park with the above organisation to provide additional protection and safeguards 
for these areas. It was also commented that Springfield Park was registered with 
the organisation.

In response it was explained that the two parks had covenants in place to ensure 
the future of both areas and the possible Community Asset Transfer of Falinge 
Park to Vintage Worx would be subject to stringent safeguards to protect the 
future of the park.

Page 6



Following discussion it was agreed that further investigation should be 
undertaken into the advantages / disadvantages of registering the parks with 
Fields in Trust.

5 Grit Bins

In response to a question it was confirmed that the cost of a grit bin including 23 
fills cost £1006.

DATES AND TIMES OF THE NEXT MEETINGS
137
The Chair explained that future meetings of the Forum would take place at two sites:

Thursday 27 June 2019 at 7pm – Falinge Park
Thursday 19 September 2019 at 7pm – Falinge Park
Thursday 12 December 2019 at 7pm – Spotland Methodist Church
Thursday 5 March 2020 at 7pm – Spotland Methodist Church

Page 7



Page 6

Minute Item 135

Page 8



Councillor Wendy Cocks - Report for Spotland Area Forum – 27th June 2019 

I’m sorry not to be with you this evening.  I am in Norfolk on holiday but will definitely be 
back in two weeks and certainly for the next forum meeting but we are fortunate to have 
two other councillors who are very able in my absence. 

As well as the regular casework, I have continued as Assistant Portfolio Holder for Health 
and Well-Being.  On a recent visit I was shown some of the good work that is happening 
at Rochdale Infirmary and seen some of their plans for development.  Linking with the proposed 
developments at Lower Falinge they are working together with the council on creating greener, better 
access from the hospital to the A58 and the town centre.  With all the changes happening in Lower Falinge 
it is a good opportunity to improve the links between the hospital and the town.  I will keep you informed 
as plans develop. 

Keeping on the green theme, I may have seen you recently on the replanting of the Wonderwall at 
Spotland Stadium.  There are so many community groups and In Bloom volunteers doing a marvellous job 
making their areas a haven for wildlife and people alike through gardening.  I think we can look forward to 
even more awards when the judges return in late July.  One of the new areas being developed is near the 
Cutgate shops with a bicycle theme as the Tour of Britain will pass through Rochdale and up Edenfield 
Road on Saturday, 14th September.  Keep your eyes out for that one. 

Another part of my role is as chair of the Age Friendly Rochdale 
Steering Group.  Perhaps some of you attended the public engagement 
event in Rochdale Town Hall where we had the opportunity to say what 
we think is Age Friendly in Rochdale and what we think we need to be 
more Age Friendly.  If you missed out, there will be other opportunities 
to have your say and help the Council to shape the future.   

I sit on the Adoption Panel, matching potential adopters with children 
in need of a loving, ‘forever family’.  I attended a three day course with potential adopters who were 
helped to see that the real purpose of adoption is not for them to get a child but for them to give a child a 
loving and stable family life that will help the child to grow and flourish.  It is what we would all want for 
our children and our ‘Cared For’ children are no different.  We are looking for more BAME families to 
consider becoming adoptive parents so that we can place children in families with similar backgrounds.  It 
is not a fast process but very important so if you know anyone who might be interested, please ask them to 
contact me in the first instance. 

My last plug is for the Clean Air Plan for Greater Manchester.  This is a government requirement and 
perhaps you have heard about the proposals to make a charge on all commercial polluting vehicles from 
2021.  The Consultation on the plan is open until 30th June and I would particularly encourage any 
businesses that use diesel powered vehicles to have their say.  We all want to improve the air quality for 
the sake of our children and the environment but we can only ask government to pay if TfGM have they 
evidence of local people’s concerns about the plan.  They need to hear your voices.  You can complete the 
survey or send an email:  https://cleanairgm.com/ or go straight to the survey 
https://www.snapsurveys.com/wh/siam/surveylanding/interviewer.asp  

In Bloom at the Wonderwall  

Email:  

wendy.cocks@rochdale.gov.uk 

Tel:  07870 172145 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5

http://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwidgKz06_riAhUL8BoKHUMKBmAQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=/url?sa%3Di%26rct%3Dj%26q%3D%26esrc%3Ds%26source%3Dimages%26cd%3D%26ved%3D2ahUKEwjy5PXh6_riAhUk4YUKHZdGDRAQjRx6BAgBEAU%26url%3Dhttps://twitter.com/agerochdale%26psig%3DAOvVaw3IpMaXL6pbI5q5pl16qM55%26ust%3D1561215548914908&psig=AOvVaw3IpMaXL6pbI5q5pl16qM55&ust=1561215548914908
https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&ved=2ahUKEwjOycmg7vriAhVMCxoKHWJJD-MQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://twitter.com/Rach31M/media&psig=AOvVaw1XqUfNDbOSTITdjYoYYqgc&ust=1561216192724328
https://www.snapsurveys.com/wh/siam/surveylanding/interviewer.asp
mailto:wendy.cocks@rochdale.gov.uk

	Agenda
	1 Welcome, Introductions, Apologies and Code of Conduct
	3 Minutes of last meeting/Matters arising/Updates
	Minutes
	135 Councillor Updates/News

	5 Councillor Updates/News

